
CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR SELF RELIANCE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED IN PERSON, TELEPHONICALLY AND 
ELECTRONICALLY AT THE FOLLOWING: 

CITY OF CUDAHY 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS / BEDWELL HALL 

5240 SANTA ANA STREET 
CUDAHY, CA 90201 

TELECONFERENCE PHONE NUMBER: (669) 900-6833, 6476620089# 

ELECTRONICALLY AT ZOOM MEETING ID: 647 662 0089 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2024 

10:00 A.M. 

A G E N D A 

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

Board Members: Francis De Leon Sanchez, Treasurer - Bell Gardens 
Hugo Argumedo, Member – Commerce 

    Emma Sharif, Vice Chair – Compton 
Martin Fuentes, Secretary – Cudahy 
Victor Farfan, Chair – Hawaiian Gardens 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA



California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Regular Meeting of January 17, 2024 

2 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Public participation is now open.  The members of the audience now have the right 
to speak on agenda items and any item under the jurisdiction of the Authority.  This 
period will be limited to thirty minutes, with no more than three minutes for each 
speaker.  Anyone desiring to speak during the public comment period must submit 
an email request juan@sixheron.com, or to the Authority Secretary via Zoom prior 
to the close of public participation.  Due to policy and Brown Act requirements, 
action will not be taken on any issues not on the Agenda. 

Please state your name and address clearly. 

4. NEW BUSINESS – OPEN  SESSION

4-1. Consideration and possible action to approve the Minutes of the December
20, 2023 Regular Meeting of the Board.

4-2. Consideration and possible action to receive and file Financial Summary and
Warrant Register dated January 17, 2024.

4-3. Status update & report from California Advocacy, LLC with respect to
legislative & regulatory matters.

4-4. Consideration and possible action on legislative & regulatory matters.

4-5. Consideration and possible action regarding Employment Agreement for
Executive Director Services between the Authority and Juan Garza.

4-6. Consideration and possible action on an Ad Hoc Committee of the Board on
Advocacy Matters Related to SB 549 (Newman).

5. OTHER MATTERS AND REPORTS

5-1. General Counsel’s Report

Pursuant to Government Code § 54954.2 (a)(3) – A report to the Board of Directors 
and the public on General Counsel’s activities, including compliance efforts, 
approval of contracts as to form, receipt of notices, and requests to place matters 
on subsequent agendas (excluding any matters qualifying for closed session 
consideration).  

5-2. Executive Director’s Report

mailto:juan@sixheron.com


California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Regular Meeting of January 17, 2024 

3 

6. NEW BUSINESS - CLOSED SESSION

6-1. None

7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

8. CHAIRMAN AND BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

This is the time and place for the Chairman and Board Members to report on any 
other items of interest.  Upon request by an individual Board Member, the Authority 
may choose to take action on any of the subject matters listed below. 

Treasurer De Leon Sanchez (Bell Gardens) 

Member Argumedo (Commerce) 

Vice Chair Sharif (Compton) 

Secretary Fuentes (Cudahy) 

Chair Farfan (Hawaiian Gardens) 

9. ADJOURNMENT

The next regular meeting of the California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Wednesday, February 21, 2024. 



CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR SELF-RELIANCE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

CITY OF COMMERCE 
ADMINISTRATION CONFERENCE ROOM 

2535 COMMERCE WAY 
COMMERCE, CA 90040 

TELECONFERENCE PHONE NUMBER: (669) 900-6833, 6476620089# 

ELECTRONICALLY AT ZOOM MEETING ID: 647 662 0089 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 20, 2023 

10:13 AM  

M I N U T E S 
______________________________________________________________________ 

ROLL CALL 

Board Members Present: 

• Victor Farfan, Chair – Hawaiian Gardens
• Emma Sharif, Vice Chair – Compton (ABSENT)
• Martin Fuentes, Secretary – Cudahy
• Francis De Leon Sanchez, Treasurer – Bell Gardens
• Hugo Argumedo, Member – Commerce (LEFT 11:10 AM)

PUBLIC ATTENDING MEETING 

Marvin Pineda, Gary Townsend, Stephanie Arechiga, Juan Garza 

AGENDA REORGANIZATION 

None. 

ITEM 4-1



California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 20, 2023. 

2 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

None. 

NEW BUSINESS – OPEN SESSION 

1. Consideration and possible action to approve the Minutes of the November 15,
2023 Regular Meeting of the Board.

Secretary Fuentes moved and Treasurer De Leon Sanchez seconded to approve
the Minutes.

The motion was approved by the following vote:

Bell Gardens Yes 
Commerce  Yes 
Compton  Absent 
Cudahy Yes 
Hawaiian Gardens Yes 

2. Consideration and possible action to receive and file Financial Summary and
Warrant Register dated December 20, 2023.

Member Argumedo moved and Secretary Fuentes seconded to receive and file
Financial Summary and Warrant Register.

The motion was approved by the following vote:

Bell Gardens Yes 
Commerce  Yes 
Compton  Absent 
Cudahy Yes 
Hawaiian Gardens Yes 

3. Status update & report from California Advocacy, LLC with respect to legislative
matters.

Mr, Marvin Pineda provided a comprehensive report on the ongoing process of the
Bureau of Gambling Control Concept Regulations on Blackjack & Rotation
Impacts.  He reported on an introductory and informational meeting he and Chair
Farfan participated in on December 15 with Mr. Tim Rainey, Speaker Rivas’
designee on cardroom issues, amongst others.  Discussion points included need
for an inclusive process, need for the Bureau to ensure it performs a wide-ranging
and comprehensive impact analysis that includes those to cities, communities and



California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 20, 2023. 

3 

residents, and a reminder of the anticipated yet preventable devastation these 
proposed regulations will have on our JPA member cities and surrounding 
communities. 

He also reported on SB 549 (Newman) and its status as a 2-year bill available to 
be reconsidered next year, though not expected to be considered in January 2024.  
Mr. Pineda reported that a meeting was held with Speaker Rivas to share negative 
impacts of SB 549 (Newman) on our communities of color, and that the messaging 
was resonating with him. Additionally, there will be an anti-SB 549 Rally Day in 
Sacramento on January 9.  Lastly, he recommended a campaign to tell stories of 
impacts to our cities as well as inviting Assembly Member Pacheco to our 
cardroom community areas. 

Member Argumedo moved and Treasurer De Leon Sanchez seconded to receive 
and file the report. 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Bell Gardens Yes 
Commerce  Yes 
Compton  Absent 
Cudahy Yes 
Hawaiian Gardens Yes 

4. Consideration & possible action to receive and file Board Meeting Dates for
Calendar Year 2024.

Executive Director Garza proposed 2024 Board meeting dates per JPA policy of
them taking place on the third Wednesday of every month at 10 am, as well as to
solicit initial feedback on potential conflicts with other events in 2024.

After initial review, the Board identified conflicts during the proposed meeting date
of Wednesday, June 19, 2024 due to a NALEO annual conference taking place in
Las Vegas from June 18-20, 2024.  All other dates proposed for calendar year
2024 were considered and approved.

Executive Director Garza recommended JPA staff identify an alternate Board
meeting date for June 2024 after assessing overall Board availability.

Member Argumedo moved and Secretary Fuentes seconded to accept staff’s
recommendations.

The motion was approved by the following vote:



California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 20, 2023. 

4 

Bell Gardens Yes 
Commerce  Yes 
Compton  Absent 
Cudahy Yes 
Hawaiian Gardens Yes 

5. Report of General Counsel

General Counsel Arechiga recommended various revisions to our JPA meeting
agendas, including adding an agenda item for possible actions on legislative and
regulatory matters; and also adding language for direction and considerations by
the Board,

Member Argumedo moved and Treasurer De Leon Sanchez seconded to approve
the recommendations.

The motion was approved by the following vote:

Bell Gardens Yes 
Commerce  Yes 
Compton  Absent 
Cudahy Yes 
Hawaiian Gardens Yes 

6. Executive Director Report/Summary

Executive Director Garza reported on:

1) Anti-SB 549 (Newman) opposition rally and press conference
that took place on December 6, 2023 in Fullerton at the district
office of Senator Newman, as well as an identical event taking
place in Sacramento on January 9, 2024.

2) Attorney General Bonta Proposed Regulations – JPA & Cities
Response Letters.

3) Fall 2024 JPA Conference – Updates and continuing talks,
especially related costs.

4) Ad Hoc Committee Concept – External Support from Local
Schools, Fire & Law Enforcement to be brought before the
Board next month for official consideration and adoption.  Chair
Farfan & Member Argumedo expressed a strong interest.

Treasurer De Leon Sanchez moved and Secretary Fuentes seconded to receive 
and file the report.  



California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 20, 2023. 

5 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Bell Gardens Yes 
Commerce  Yes 
Compton  Absent 
Cudahy Yes 
Hawaiian Gardens Yes 

NEW BUSINESS - CLOSED SESSION - (11:16 AM) 

7. Pursuant to Government Code § 54957(b)(1)

• Public Employee Performance/Evaluation (Executive Director)

8. Pursuant to Government Code § 54957.6(a)

• Conference with Labor Negotiators

• Agency designated representatives: Board Members
• Unrepresented employee: Juan Garza, Executive Director

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION - (11:54 AM) 

The JPA Board reconvened to open session. Board members in attendance were Chair 
Farfan, Secretary Fuentes and Treasurer De Leon Sanchez. 

ORAL CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS 

General Legal Counsel reported on closed session item: 

No reportable action; direction was given on agenda items #7 and #8 by Board members 
in attendance (Chair Farfan, Secretary Fuentes and Treasurer De Leon Sanchez were 
present for the closed session discussion). 

CHAIRMAN AND BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 

This is the time and place for the Chairman and Board Members to report on any 
other items of interest.  Upon request by an individual Board Member, the Authority 
may choose to take action on any of the subject matters listed below. 

Treasurer De Leon Sanchez (Bell Gardens) 

Secretary Fuentes (Cudahy) 

Chair Farfan (Hawaiian Gardens) 



California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 20, 2023. 

6 

ADJOURN  (11:55 AM) 

The next regular meeting of the California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
will be held at 10:00 am on Wednesday, January 17, 2024. 

_______________________ 
 Victor Farfan, Chair 

ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
 Martin Fuentes, Secretary 



CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR SELF-RELIANCE 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

WARRANT REPORT AND FINANCIAL 
SUMMARY – DECEMBER 2023 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2024. 
______________________________________________________________________ 

ITEM 4-2



City of Hawaiian Gardens

Page:  1
1/16/2024
12:02 pm

BALANCE SHEET

As of:  12/31/2023

01/17/2024 JPA MEETING

Balances

Fund:  50 - CA CITIES FOR SELF RELIANCE
Assets

210,002.211000.0000  CASH

210,002.21Total Assets

Liabilities

14,495.342100.0000  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

14,495.34Total Liabilities

Reserves/Balances

101,191.322900.0000  FUND BALANCE-UNASSIGNED
94,315.552920.0000  CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

195,506.87Total Reserves/Balances

Total Liabilities & Balances 210,002.21



Ref. No. Vendor Name Invoice No. Invoice Date Invoice Description Invoice Amount

Edit List of Invoices - Summary
01/17/2024 JPA MEETING

01/16/2024

11:42 am

1

Date:

Time:

Page:City of Hawaiian Gardens 

Posting Date PONumber

174925 HUGO ARGUMEDO
2023-12-20

12/20/2023 12.20.23 MTG STIPEND
250.00

12/20/2023

250.00Vendor Total:

174926 VICTOR FARFAN
2023-12-20

12/20/2023 12.20.23 MTG STIPEND
250.00

12/20/2023

250.00Vendor Total:

174927 MARTIN U FUENTES
2023-12-20

12/20/2023 12.20.23 MTG STIPEND
125.00

12/20/2023

125.00Vendor Total:

174928 JUAN GARZA
2023-12-31

12/31/2023 DEC 2023 SALARY
5,000.00

12/31/2023

5,000.00Vendor Total:

174929 OLIVAREZ MADRUGA LAW
24034

12/31/2023 DEC 2023 SVCS - GENERAL
320.00

12/31/2023

174930 OLIVAREZ MADRUGA LAW
24035

12/31/2023 DEC 2023 SVCS - BOARD MEETINGS
818.34

12/31/2023

174931 OLIVAREZ MADRUGA LAW
24036

12/31/2023 DEC 2023 SVCS - PRA
816.00

12/31/2023

1,954.34Vendor Total:

174932 EVELYN PINEDA
2024-01-04

01/04/2024 DEC 2023 SVCS
6,666.00

12/31/2023

6,666.00Vendor Total:

174933 FRANCIS DE LEON SANCHEZ
2023-12-20

12/20/2023 12.20.23 MTG STIPEND
250.00

12/20/2023

250.00Vendor Total:

Grand Total:

Less Credit Memos:
Net Total:

Less Hand Check Total:

Outstanding Invoice Total: 14,495.34

14,495.34

14,495.34

0.00

0.00

Total Invoices: 9



City of Hawaiian Gardens

01/17/2024 JPA MEETING
1/16/2024

Page:  1

12:03 pm

% BudUnencBalEncumb. YTDCURR MTHYTD ActualAmended Bud.Original Bud.For the Period:  7/1/2023 to 12/31/2023

REVENUE/EXPENDITURE REPORT

Fund Type:  SR  SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Fund:  50 - CA CITIES FOR SELF RELIANCE
Revenues

Function:  
Dept:  0000  ASSETS

Acct Class:  REV  REVENUE
3742.0050  JPA MEMBERSHIP FUNDING 157,500.00 157,500.00 157,500.00 0.00 0.00 100.00.00
3742.0052  CASINO DONATIONS 70,000.00 70,000.00 35,000.00 0.00 35,000.00 50.00.00

227,500.00 227,500.00 192,500.00 0.00 35,000.000.00 84.6REVENUE

227,500.00 227,500.00 192,500.00 0.00 35,000.000.00 84.6ASSETS

227,500.00 227,500.00 192,500.00 0.00 35,000.000.00 84.6Function:  

Revenues 227,500.00 227,500.00 192,500.00 0.00 35,000.000.00 84.6

Expenditures
Function:  

Dept:  4908  JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
Acct Class:  OPER  OPERATING COSTS

4200.0050  CONTRACT SVC-EX DIR JPA 80,925.00 80,925.00 30,000.00 0.00 50,925.00 37.15,000.00
4200.0052  COMMUNICATIONS 14,400.00 14,400.00 0.00 0.00 14,400.00 0.00.00
4202.0000  AUDIT SERVICES 6,500.00 6,500.00 13,000.00 0.00 -6,500.00 200.00.00
4211.0000  MEETING STIPENDS 17,250.00 17,250.00 6,000.00 0.00 11,250.00 34.8875.00
4213.0000  OTHER OPERATING COSTS 9,000.00 9,000.00 119.40 0.00 8,880.60 1.30.00
4250.0001  LEGISLATIVE ADVOCATE/JPA 80,000.00 80,000.00 39,996.00 0.00 40,004.00 50.06,666.00
4252.0000  SPECIAL COUNSEL - CONTRACT 19,425.00 19,425.00 9,069.05 0.00 10,355.95 46.71,954.34

227,500.00 227,500.00 98,184.45 0.00 129,315.5514,495.34 43.2OPERATING COSTS

227,500.00 227,500.00 98,184.45 0.00 129,315.5514,495.34 43.2JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

227,500.00 227,500.00 98,184.45 0.00 129,315.5514,495.34 43.2Function:  

Expenditures 227,500.00 227,500.00 98,184.45 0.00 129,315.5514,495.34 43.2

0.00Net Effect for CA CITIES FOR SELF RELIANCE
Change in Fund Balance: 94,315.55

0.00 0.00 94,315.55 -14,495.34 -94,315.55 0.0

0.00Net Effect for SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -94,315.55-14,495.3494,315.550.000.00

0.00 0.00 94,315.55 -14,495.34 0.00 -94,315.55Grand Total Net Effect:  



1107 9th Street, Suite 420, 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Phone:(916) 869-3685 

www.CaliforniaAdvocacy.com 

January 17, 2024 

California Update: Agenda 

1. Bureau of Gambling Control –Concept Regulations Proposed on
September 11, 2023

2. SB 549 (Newman) – Tribal Declaratory Relief Act
3. Stakeholder Outreach

ITEM 4-3

http://www.californiaadvocacy.com/


TO:   Honorable Chair and Members of the Governing Board 
FROM:  Stephanie Arechiga, General Counsel  
SUBJECT: Consideration and Possible Approval of Employment Agreement for the 

Position of Executive Director Between the California Cities for Self-Reliance 
Joint Powers Authority and Juan Garza 

DATE: January 18, 2024 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Members of the Authority are recommended to review, consider, and approve the 
Employment Agreement for the Position of Executive Director, between the California Cities for 
Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority (“Authority”) and Juan Garza.  

BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The Authority’s Restated and Amended Joint Powers Authority Agreement (“JPA Agreement”), 
authorizes the Authority to select an Executive Director.  Juan Garza (“Mr. Garza”) has acted as 
the Executive Director for the Authority from March 13, 2020, through present day. The most recent 
Employment Agreement between the Authority and Mr. Garza expired on November 18, 2022.  

After completion of Mr. Garza’s employment review, the Authority has provided direction to bring 
back for consideration the Employment Agreement for the Position of Executive Director, between 
the California Cities for Self-Reliance Joint Powers Authority, attached as Attachment 1.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is currently no fiscal impact on the Authority’s budget as Mr. Garza’s salary has already 
been approved in the current budget.  

ITEM 4-5



ATTACHMENT 

1. Employment for the Position of Executive Director, between the California Cities for Self-
Reliance Joint Powers Authority.



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
For the Position of 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

This Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 16th day of 
January 2024, by and between the CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR SELF RELIANCE JOINT 
POWERS AUTHORITY (“AUTHORITY”), a joint powers authority organized under California 
Government Code § 6500, et seq., and JUAN GARZA (“GARZA”), an individual, on the 
following terms and conditions. 

RECITALS 

A. AUTHORITY desires to employ the services of GARZA as Executive Director of
AUTHORITY (“Executive Director”), in consideration of and subject to the terms, conditions, and 
benefits set forth in this Agreement. 

B. GARZA desires to accept employment as Executive Director in consideration of
and subject to the terms, conditions, and benefits set forth in this Agreement. 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

In consideration of the promises and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as 
follows: 

1. Position, Duties and Term.

1.1 Position. GARZA accepts employment with AUTHORITY as its Executive
Director and shall perform all functions, duties and services set forth in Section 1.4 [Duties] of this 
Agreement. 

1.2 Period of Employment/Commencement Date. GARZA’s employment with 
AUTHORITY shall be “at-will” pursuant to the provisions of Government Code § 36506. 
GARZA’s employment shall be subject to the provisions of this Agreement and provisions 
applicable to the office of the Executive Director contained in the Authority’s Restated and 
Amended Joint Powers Authority Agreement (“JPA AGREEMENT”), as it may be amended from 
time to time. Those provisions will be construed as complementary to the extent possible. In the 
event of a conflict between those documents, the JPA AGREEMENT will control. GARZA shall 
commence the performance of his duties as the Executive Director on July 1, 2023 
(“Commencement Date”) or at such other date as the parties hereto shall agree in writing. 

1.3 At-Will. GARZA acknowledges that he is an at-will employee of AUTHORITY 
who shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors at all times during the period of his service 
hereunder. This acknowledgment, understanding, and agreement is affirmed by GARZA’s 
signature on the Agreement and independently affirmed by GARZA’s signature immediately 
beneath this Section. 

ITEM 4-5



To the extent they conflict with his agreement to at-will status, the terms of the 
AUTHORITY’s personnel rules, policies, regulations, procedures, ordinances, and resolutions 
including, without limitation, AUTHORITY’s By-Laws and the JPA AGREEMENT, as they may 
be amended or supplemented from time to time, shall not apply to GARZA, and nothing in this 
Agreement is intended to, or does, confer upon GARZA any right to any property interest in 
continued employment, or any due process right to a hearing before or after a decision by the 
Board of Directors to terminate his employment, except as is expressly provided in Section 5 
[Termination] of this Agreement. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall in any way prevent, 
limit or otherwise interfere with the right of AUTHORITY to terminate the services of GARZA 
as provided in Section 4 [Termination]. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or 
otherwise interfere with the right of GARZA to resign at any time from this position with 
AUTHORITY, subject only to the provisions set forth in Section 4 [Termination] of this 
Agreement. The “at-will” term the parties have agreed to may only be modified or deleted through 
an express, written agreement to that effect, signed by GARZA and the Chair of the Board of 
Directors or their designated representative with the entire Board’s authorization. 

I, JUAN GARZA, understand and agree that my employment as Executive Director is on an "at-
will" basis, and for no definite or determinable period. No promises or representations contrary 
to the foregoing are binding on the AUTHORITY unless made in writing and signed by me and 
the Chair of the Board of Directors or their designated representative with the entire Board’s 
authorization. 

______________________________ _________________________ 
     Juan Garza Date 

1.4 Duties. GARZA shall serve as the Executive Director and shall be vested with the 
powers, duties and responsibilities set forth in Section 12 of the JPA AGREEMENT, the terms 
of which are incorporated herein by reference, as may be amended from time to time. GARZA 
shall provide service at the direction and under supervision of the Board of Directors. It is the 
intent of the parties that the Executive Director shall keep the Board of Directors fully apprised 
of all significant ongoing operations of AUTHORITY. To that end, GARZA shall report directly 
to the Board of Directors and will periodically, or as may be otherwise specifically requested by 
the Board of Directors, provide oral or written status reports to the Board of Directors on his 
activities and those of AUTHORITY. 

GARZA has the authority and responsibility to perform all executive and administrative 
functions of the Authority subject to the direction of the Board of Directors. GARZA’s duties as 
Executive Director shall include, but are not limited to: 

a. Direct and oversee the day-to-day operations of AUTHORITY to achieve
its purposes;



b. Attending all meetings of the Board of Directors, unless excused by the
Chair (or presiding officer if the Chair is unavailable), and taking part in the
discussion of all matters before the Board of Directors. The Executive
Director shall receive notice of all regular and special meetings of the
Board of Directors;

c. Reviewing all agenda documents before preparing the agenda for any
regular or special meetings of the Board of Directors;

d. Directing and supervising the work of all AUTHORITY employees and
agents, with the exception of the AUTHORITY’s General Counsel. The
Executive Director shall endeavor to implement changes that they believe
will result in greater efficiency, economy, or improved public service in
the administration of AUTHORITY affairs;

e. Recommending to the Board of Directors from time to time of the
adoption of such measures as the Executive Director may deem necessary
or expedient for the improvement of the AUTHORITY’s operations; and

f. Conducting research in administrative practices in order to bring about
greater efficiency and economy in the AUTHORITY’s operations and
develop and recommend to the Board of Directors long range plans to
improve AUTHORITY operations and enhance AUTHORITY’s ability to
achieve its outreach and advocacy goals.

It is the intent of the Board of Directors for the Executive Director to function as the chief 
executive officer of the AUTHORITY’s organization. Without additional compensation, 
GARZA shall provide such other services as are customary and appropriate to the position of 
Executive Director, together with such additional services assigned from time to time by the 
Board of Directors as may be consistent with California law and the JPA AGREEMENT and 
AUTHORITY’s bylaws and policies. GARZA shall devote his best efforts and attention to the 
performance of these duties. Notwithstanding GARZA’s duties as Executive Director, nothing 
in this Agreement shall be construed to prohibit direct communications between the Board of 
Directors and employees of the AUTHORITY. 

 1.5 Hours of Work. GARZA shall devote the time necessary to adequately perform 
his duties as Executive Director during the term of employment commencing July 1, 2023. 
GARZA shall, to the extent reasonably practicable, make himself available to the Board of 
Directors, AUTHORITY officers and staff, and members of the community during normal 
business hours. The position of Executive Director is deemed an exempt position under state and 
federal wage and hour laws. GARZA’s compensation is not based on hours worked and GARZA 
shall not be entitled to any compensation for overtime. 

 1.6 Other Activity. During the period of his employment, it is mutually understood 
by the Parties that GARZA may accept other professional and/or consulting engagements. 
Regardless, there is a mutually expectation that GARZA shall not solicit engagements that 
represent a conflict-of-interest with the AUTHORITY’s core purpose as defined in the JPA 



AGREEMENT at Section 2, or that otherwise necessarily interfere with the business or operation 
of AUTHORITY or the satisfactory performance of GARZA’s duties as Executive Director. 
 

1.7 Term. GARZA’s term of employment as Executive Director will be for an initial 
term of eighteen (18) months (hereinafter referred to by the capitalized word “Term”) 
commencing on July 1, 2023, and continuing through December 31, 2024. The AUTHORITY, 
in its sole discretion may extend the Term of the Agreement for up to two (2) one-year extensions. 
Nothing in this Section 1.7 shall preclude the AUTHORITY from terminating this Agreement 
subject to the termination provisions within. 

2. Compensation. For the services to be provided pursuant to this Agreement, GARZA shall 
receive the following compensation, subject to appropriate tax and governmental deductions: 

2.1 Base Salary. GARZA shall receive a monthly salary of Six Thousand Seven 
Hundred Forty-Four Dollars ($ 6,744.00), paid monthly. 

2.2. Severance. The AUTHORITY will not provide for any severance pay for GARZA. 

2.3 No Benefits. Apart from the salary set forth in Section 2.1, GARZA shall not 
accrue and is expressly not entitled to receive, and will not receive any other compensation, 
severance pay or benefits from the City, including but not limited to health and medical benefits, 
deferred compensation, pension benefits of any kind, retiree medical, sick leave, vacation time 
or any other form of compensation or benefit. 

2.4 Evaluation. The Board of Directors will review and evaluate the performance of 
GARZA as Executive Director at its discretion. 

2.5.  Past Due Compensation. The AUTHORITY will ensure GARZA is 
compensated his past due base salary covering the period from July 1, 2023 through December 
31, 2023.  

3. Business Expenses. Separate from and in addition to the Compensation set forth in 
Section 2, GARZA shall be entitled to reimbursement of expenses incurred in AUTHORITY-
related business as follows: 

3.1 Business Expenses. The AUTHORITY shall reimburse GARZA for all 
reasonable, non-personal AUTHORITY-related business expenses incurred by him in 
accordance with submittal, processing, and payment policies of the AUTHORITY. 

3.2 Business Travel. The AUTHORITY shall reimburse GARZA for travel and 
subsistence expenses related to professional and official travel, task-force meetings, conferences, 
official functions, and other occasions reasonably necessary to the pursuit of the purpose of the 
AUTHORITY, upon prior approval of the Board of Directors and in accordance with submittal, 
processing, and payment policies of the AUTHORITY. 

 



3.3 Bonding. The AUTHORITY shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds 
required of the Executive Director position under any laws or ordinance. 

4. Termination.

4.1 At-Will Employee. Pursuant to and consistent with Section 1.3, GARZA serves 
as the Executive Director at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. Nothing in this Agreement 
shall prevent, limit, condition, or otherwise interfere with the right of the Board of Directors to 
suspend from duty, remove from officer, or otherwise terminate the services of GARZA as the 
Executive Director at its sole discretion and at any time, with or without cause. This Agreement 
may be terminated as follows: 

a. Discharge. The Board of Directors may remove the Executive Director
with or without cause by motion adopted by the affirmative votes of a
majority of the Directors;

b. Resignation. GARZA may terminate his employment for any reason, and
at any time, with or without cause and without notice; or

c. Preference for Notice. Notwithstanding the lack of mandatory notice
obligations outlined in foregoing Subsections 4.1(a) and (b), the
AUTHORITY and GARZA mutually understand and agree that a period
of two weeks notice is preferred before any separation and mutually agree
that both parties will provide this notice, if practicable.

4.2 Termination Obligation. GARZA agrees that all property, including without 
limitation, all equipment, tangible Proprietary Information (as defined in Section 5, below), 
documents, records, notes, contracts, and computer-generated materials furnished to or prepared 
by him incident to his employment belongs to the AUTHORITY and shall be returned promptly 
to the AUTHORITY upon the completion of GARZA’s Term pursuant to any of the mechanisms 
set forth in Subsections 4.1(a) through (c). 

5. Proprietary Information.

“Proprietary Information” is all information and any idea pertaining in any manner to the
business of the AUTHORITY (or any AUTHORITY affiliate), its elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, clients, consultants, or business associates, which was produced by any 
employee of the AUTHORITY in the course of his or her employment or otherwise produced or 
acquired by or on behalf of the AUTHORITY. Proprietary Information shall include, without 
limitation, trade secrets, product ideas, inventions, processes, formulae, data, know-how, software 
and other computer programs, copyrightable material, marketing plans, strategies, sales, financial 
reports, forecasts and customer lists. All Proprietary Information not generally known outside of the 
AUTHORITY’s organization, and all Proprietary Information so known only through improper 
means, shall be deemed “Confidential Information.” During his employment by the 
AUTHORITY, GARZA shall use Proprietary Information, and shall disclose Confidential 
Information, only for the benefit of AUTHORITY and as is or may be necessary to perform his 
job responsibilities under this Agreement. Following termination, GARZA shall not use any 



Proprietary Information and shall not disclose any Confidential Information, except with the 
express written consent of the AUTHORITY. GARZA’s obligations under this Section shall 
survive the termination of his employment and the expiration of this Agreement. 

6. Conflict of Interest. GARZA represents and warrants to the AUTHORITY that he
presently has no interest, and represents that he will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect,
financial or otherwise, which would conflict in any manner or interfere in any way with
performance of his services under this Agreement. The AUTHORITY has relied on this
representation when extending its offer of employment and when executing this Agreement.

7. General Provisions.

 7.1 Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications under this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective upon delivery by hand or three (3) business 
days after deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered, and addressed 
to the AUTHORITY at the address below, or at the last known address maintained in GARZA’s 
personnel file. GARZA agrees to notify the AUTHORITY in writing of any change in his address 
during his employment with the AUTHORITY. Notice of change of address shall be effective only 
when accomplished in accordance with this Section. 

The AUTHORITY’s Notice Address: 

California Cities for Self Reliance Joint Powers Authority 
7100 Garfield Avenue 
Bell Gardens, California 90201 
Attn: Board of Directors 

Executive Director GARZA’s Notice Address: 

Juan Garza 
P.O. Box 790 
Bellflower, CA 90707 

 7.2 Indemnification. Subject to, in accordance with, and to the extent provided by the 
California Government Claims Act [Government Code §§ 810 et seq.], the AUTHORITY will 
indemnify, defend, and hold GARZA harmless from and against any action, demand, suit, monetary 
judgment or other legal or administrative proceeding, and any liability, injury, loss or other damages, 
arising out of any act or omission occurring within the course and scope of GARZA’s duties as 
Executive Director during GARZA’s tenure in that office. The AUTHORITY shall pay the amount 
of any settlement or judgment thereon; provided that GARZA cooperates in the defense of the claim, 
demand, or action. In this regard, the AUTHORITY shall have the discretion to compromise or settle 
any such claim, demand or action and pay the amount of any settlement rendered thereon. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the AUTHORITY shall have no duty to indemnify, defend or hold 
GARZA harmless from any criminal proceeding or with regard to any civil, criminal or 
administrative proceeding initiated by him. 



Without limiting the application of this Section 7.2, nothing in this Agreement shall expand the 
AUTHORITY’S defense and indemnification obligations beyond those provided in the 
Government Claims Act and Government Code §§ 995-996.6. Further, in the event the 
AUTHORITY provides funds for legal criminal defense pursuant to this sub-section and the 
terms of the Government Code, GARZA shall reimburse the AUTHORITY for such legal 
criminal defense funds, if GARZA is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of office of position 
as provided by Government Code §§ 53243-53243.4. 

 7.3 Integration. This Agreement is intended to be the final, complete, and exclusive 
statement of the terms of GARZA’s employment as Executive Director by the AUTHORITY. 
This Agreement supersedes all other prior and contemporaneous agreements and statements, 
whether written or oral, express or implied, pertaining in any manner to the employment of 
GARZA. It may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior or contemporaneous statements or 
agreements. 

 7.4 Amendments. This Agreement may not be altered, amended or modified except 
in a written document signed by GARZA, approved by the Board of Directors and signed by the 
Board of Director’s Chair or his duly authorized designee. 

 7.5 Waiver. Failure to exercise any right under this Agreement shall not constitute a 
waiver of such right. No waiver of a provision of this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any 
other provision, whether or not similar. No waiver shall be binding unless executed in writing by 
the party making the waiver. 

 7.6 Assignment. GARZA shall not assign any rights or obligations under this 
Agreement. The AUTHORITY may, upon two (2) weeks prior written notice to GARZA, assign 
its rights and obligations hereunder. 

 7.7 Severability. If a court or arbitrator holds any provision of this Agreement to be 
invalid, unenforceable, or void, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 7.8 Attorneys’ Fees. In any legal action, arbitration, or other proceeding brought to 
enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 

 7.9 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California, with venue properly only in Los Angeles 
County, State of California. 

7.10  Interpretation. This Agreement shall be construed as a whole, according to its 
fair meaning, and not in favor of or against any party. By way of example and not in limitation, 
this Agreement shall not be construed in favor of the party receiving a benefit or against the party 
responsible for any particular language in this Agreement. Captions are used for reference 
purposes only and should be ignored in the interpretation of the Agreement. Each party waives its 



future right to claim, contest, or assert that this Agreement was modified, cancelled, superseded, 
or changed by any oral agreement, course of conduct, waiver or estoppel.  

7.11  Acknowledgment. GARZA acknowledges that he has had the opportunity to 
consult legal counsel with regard to this Agreement, that he has read and understands this 
Agreement, that he is fully aware of its legal effect, and that he has entered into it freely and 
voluntarily and based on his own judgment and not on any representations or promises other than 
those contained in this Agreement. 

7.12  Miscellaneous. The provisions of Section 12 of the JPA AGREEMENT relating 
to the Executive Director are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, as amended 
from time to time. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the AUTHORITY has caused this Agreement to be signed 
and executed on its behalf by the Chair of its Board of Directors and duly attested to by its 
Secretary, and GARZA has signed and executed this Agreement, as of the date first indicated 
above. 

CALIFORNIA CITIES FOR SELF 
RELIANCE JOINT POWERS 
AUTHORITY  

By: _______________________________ 
Victor Farfan, Chair 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

By: ______________________________ 
Juan Garza, Executive Director 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: _______________________________ 
Stephanie A. Arechiga, 
General Legal Counsel  

ATTEST: 

By: _____________________________ 
Martin Fuentes, 
Secretary  



TO:   Honorable Chair and Members of the Governing Board 

FROM:  Juan Garza, Executive Director  

SUBJECT: Executive Director Report/Summary   

DATE: January 17, 2024 

1) SB 549 (Newman) – Tribal Rotation Bill Efforts: Press Conferences & Rallies (12/06/23 Fullerton
& 01/09/24 Sacramento)

2) SB 549 (Newman) – Tribal Rotation Bill Efforts: Ongoing Legislator Engagement

3) Fall 2024 JPA Conference – Updates

ITEM 5-2


	Binder1
	FINAL - 01-17-2024 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1.   CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

	AGENDA ITEM 4-1 - 12-20-2023 Regular Meeting Draft Minutes
	ROLL CALL

	AGENDA ITEM 4-2 - 2024-01-17 JPA Warrant Report and Financial Summary for December 2023
	AGENDA ITEM 4-3 - CA Advocacy - January 17, 2024 Agenda
	AGENDA ITEM 4-5 - Staff Report-ED Agreement
	AGENDA ITEM 4-5 - FINAL - Garza - Executive Director Agreement - 011624

	AGENDA ITEM 5-2 - ED Report



